IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

KENNETH DARCELL QUINCE,

Petitioner-Appellant,

vs.

Appeal Docket Note
65,407

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent-Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

Robert G. Udell 310 Denver Avenue Stuart, Florida 33494 (305) 283-9450

Russell F. Canan 511 E Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20001 (202) 737-8622

October 25, 1984

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

| KENNETH DARCELL QUINCE, |) |
|-------------------------|----------------------------|
| Petitioner-Appellant, |) |
| vs. |) Appeal Docket No. 65,407 |
| THE STATE OF FLORIDA, |) Case No. 80-48-cc |
| Respondent-Appellee. | í |

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

Robert G. Udell 310 Denver Avenue Stuart, Florida 33494 (305) 283-9450

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED

- I. DID DEFENSE COUNSEL'S FAILURE THOROUGHLY TO REVIEW THE PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT WITH HIS CLIENT DEPRIVE MR. QUINCE OF HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO REBUT NUMEROUS FACTUAL INACCURACIES CONTAINED IN THE REPORT?
- II. WAS IT A VIOLATION OF MR. QUINCE'S SIXTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS FOR THE CIRCUIT COURT, IN ASSESSING THE DEATH PENALTY, TO GIVE EXPLICIT CONSIDERATION TO PRIOR UNCOUNSELED JUVENILE ADJUDICATIONS WHICH WERE CONSTITUTIONALLY INVALID?
- DID THE STATE'S USE OF PSYCHIATRIC EVIDENCE,
 DERIVED FROM COMPETENCY AND PRODUCTIVITY
 EXAMINATIONS OF MR. QUINCE CONDUCTED WITHOUT
 MIRANDA WARNINGS, TO PROSPECTIVELY REBUT
 MITIGATING FACTORS AT SENTENCING VIOLATE
 HIS FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT
 RIGHTS?
- IV. DID DEFENSE COUNSEL'S LACK OF INVESTIGATION, INADEQUATE PREPARATION, AND INEPT CONDUCT OF THE PROCEEDINGS, TO THE SUBSTANTIAL DETRIMENT OF HIS CLIENT, CONSTITUTE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL REQUIRING THE VACATION OF MR. QUINCE'S CONVICTION AND DEATH SENTENCE?
- V. IS THE FLORIDA CAPITAL PUNISHMENT STATUTE ADMINISTERED IN AN ARBITRARY AND DISCRIMINATORY FASHION?
- VI. DID THE TRIAL COURT'S REFUSAL TO PROVIDE FUNDS
 FOR EXPERT SERVICES AND TO GRANT A SHORT CONTINUANCE
 OF THE EVIDENTIARY HEARING, DUE TO THE DEATH OF
 COUNSEL'S MOTHER, RENDER THE PROCEEDINGS
 FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Prior Proceedings

On August 11, 1980, Appellant Kenneth Darcell Quince pleaded guilty to the murder of Frances Bowdoin during a sexual assault, in violation of §782.04 Fla. Stats., and burglary of an occupied dwelling, in violation of §810.02 Fla. Stats. 1 (PTR. 5-6, 12-14).²

Following a sentencing hearing before the Honorable S. James Foxman without an advisory jury, on October 20, 1980, the Court adjudged Mr. Quince guilty of both offenses and imposed a sen-

Because the sexual assault was the underlying felony, Count II of the indictment, which alleged a sexual battery in violation of §794.11 Fla. Stats., was dismissed. (R.App. 29; PTR. 3-4, 18-19).

The following abbreviations will be used with respect to the record:

PTR. refers to the transcript of the guilty plea entered on August 11, 1980.

R.App. refers to the Record on Appeal from the conviction and sentence in 1980.

STR. refers to the transcript of the sentencing hearing conducted on October 20, 1980.

SX. I refers to State Exhibit 1 introduced at the Sentencing hearing.

PCR. refers to the Record on Appeal from the denial of post conviction relief on April 30, 1984.

tence of death on October 21, 1980, (R.App. 30). The death sentence was affirmed on appeal. Quince v. State, 414 So.2d 185 (Fla.), reh'g denied, cert. denied, 459 U.S. 895 (1982).

Thereafter, Mr. Quince filed a Motion for Post-Conviction Relief in the Circuit Court of the Seventh Judicial Circuit in and for Volusia County, Florida on July 5, 1983, pursuant to Rule 3.850 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. (PCR. 602-While the motion was pending before the Circuit Court, the Governor of Florida signed a death warrant on January 31, 1984, ordering Appellant's execution on February 20, 1984. (PCR. 667-68). On February 8, 1984, the Circuit Court granted Mr. Quince's application for a stay of execution (PCR. 669) and subsequently granted his request for an evidentiary hearing on the motion for post-conviction relief. (PCR. 673). After the conclusion of this evidentiary hearing, the Circuit Court denied Mr. Quince's motion for post-conviction relief on April 30, 1984. (PCR. 707-On May 24, 1984, Mr. Quince filed a Notice of Appeal. (PCR. 709).

B. Statement of Facts

On the evening of December 28, 1979, Frances Bowdoin was sexually assaulted and killed, and her house was burglarized.

Mr. Quince was initially charged with the burglary and arrested on January 3, 1980. (R.App. Vol. I at 34-35). During custodial interrogation on that date, Mr. Quince made an admission concerning the death of Mrs. Bowdoin but denied sexually assaulting her. (R.App. Vol. I at 47; STR. 36-37, 42-51). Mr. Quince was then also charged with first degree murder. (STR. 46). On or about January 4, 1980, the public defender's office was appointed to represent Mr. Quince (PCR. 412-13), who was subsequently charged in a three count indictment with first degree murder, sexual battery, and burglary of an occupied dwelling, in violation of §§782.04, 794.011 and 810.02 Fla. Stats., respectively. (R.App. Vol. I at 1).

After obtaining a court order on February 4, 1980, to seize samples of Mr. Quince's blood, saliva, head hair, and pubic hair (R.App. Vol. I at 2-3), the police initiated further interrogation of Mr. Quince, outside the presence of his counsel. (STR. 51-52). At that time Mr. Quince admitted to the sexual battery of Ms. Bowdoin. (STR. 53).

On March 10, 1980, upon the motion of defense counsel, the Circuit Court appointed three psychiatric experts to examine Mr. Quince to determine both his competency to stand trial and his mental state at the time of the offense. (R.App. Vol. I at 4-

8). Each of the experts concluded that Mr. Quince was competent to stand trial and that he was sane when the crime occurred. (R.App. Vol. I at 54-56).

Subsequently, on August 11, 1980, Mr. Quince, represented by Howard Pearl, Esquire, entered pleas of guilty to the felony murder of Ms. Bowdoin and the burglary of her home. (PTR. 5-6, 12-14). Mr. Quince's right to an advisory sentence recommendation by a jury was waived (PTR. 6-9), the Circuit Court ordered a presentence investigation of Mr. Quince, and the matter was continued for sentencing. (PTR. 17).

On September 29, 1980, defense counsel moved for the appointment of two experts, Dr. Ann McMillan, a psychologist, and Dr. Fernando Stern, a psychiatrist, to examine Mr. Quince to determine whether the mitigating circumstance of substantial impairment existed. (R.App. Vol. I at 15-17). The Circuit Court granted the motion. (R.App. Vol. I at 13-14).

The sentencing hearing was conducted on October 20, 1980 before Judge Foxman. Again, Mr. Pearl appeared as counsel for Mr. Quince.

The State commenced its presentation by offering Mr. Quince's juvenile records to prospectively negate any contention

that the defendant was entitled to a finding that he had no significant history of criminal activity. (STR. 4-8). Defense counsel objected to the admission of these documents. (STR. 7). The Court admitted the juvenile records but reserved a ruling on their relevance to a finding of prior criminal activity. (STR. 8, 41).

The State then called as a witness Officer Larry Lewis, who had investigated the homicide and burglary. (STR. 9-10). Officer Lewis described the crime scene (STR. 13-16, 25-27, 29-34, 46, 58-70), the results of tests conducted by the Sanford Crime Lab (STR. 16-20, 47, 67-68), and the identification of latent fingerprints found at the decedent's house. (STR. 27-28, 35). Officer Lewis also testified about the arrest, interrogation, and statements of Mr. Quince. (STR. 35-37, 41-53, 55-58).

The State next called Dr. Arthur Botting, the medical examiner who conducted the autopsy of Ms. Bowdoin. (STR. 70-72). Dr. Botting recounted the injuries sustained by Ms. Bowdoin, as well as his opinion as to how they occurred, and the possible effects of the injuries. (STR. 77-98). Dr. Botting concluded that Ms. Bowdoin had been struck several times, sexually battered, and strangled.

The State then called Dr. Barnard (STR. 102) to render his opinion as to whether Mr. Quince met the criteria of two statutory mitigating circumstances: mental or emotional disturbance (6(b)) and substantial impairment (6(f)). (STR. 110-14). Based on the productivity and competency examination of Mr. Quince, which Dr. Barnard conducted in March of 1980, and a review of other material, the doctor responded negatively. (STR. 110-22, 127). At the conclusion of his testimony, Dr. Barnard's written report was admitted into evidence. (R.App. Vol I at 54; STR. 130).

Following Dr. Barnard's appearance, the productivity and competency reports prepared by Dr. Carrea and Dr. Rossario in April of 1980 were also admitted into evidence, upon Mr. Pearl's stipulation, without the testimony of either doctor. (R.App. Vol. I at 55-56; STR. 131-32). The State then rested its case-in-chief on aggravating circumstances. (STR. 132).

Mr. Pearl opened his presentation on behalf of Mr. Quince with the testimony of Dr. McMillan, the psychologist appointed by the Court in September to examine Mr. Quince. (R.App. Vol. I at 13-14; STR. 132-33). Dr. McMillan related the significance and results of various psychological tests she administered to Mr. Quince as well as her oral examination of him. (STR. 140-45).

Dr. McMillan concluded that Mr. Quince's ability to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or to conform his conduct to the requirements of the law was substantially impaired but that he was not experiencing an extreme mental or emotional disturbance at the time of the offense. (STR. 145-49).

Mr. Pearl then called Dr. Stern, the psychiatrist whom the Court had appointed at his request to examine Mr. Quince prior to the sentencing hearing. (R.App. Vol. I at 13-14; STR. 150). Based on his examination of Mr. Quince, the evaluations of the other doctors, the presentence investigation report, and the police reports of the crime (STR. 153-56), Dr. Stern testified that he found no evidence to mitigate the offense. (STR. 157-58, 163-65).

The reports of Dr. McMillan and Dr. Stern were both admitted into evidence, and the defense rested. (R.App. Vol. I at 57-58; STR. 164-65). After hearing arguments from counsel, the Circuit Court took the matter under advisement. (STR. 207).

On October 21, 1980, the Circuit Court rendered its verdict. The Court found three aggravating factors: (1) the murder was committed during a rape (F.S. 921.141(5)(d)); (2) the murder was committed for pecuniary gain (F.S. 921.141(5)(f)) and (3) the

murder was especially heinous, atrocious, and cruel (F.S. 921, 141(5)(h)). (R.App. Vol. I at 18-19).

In view of Mr. Quince's juvenile record, the Court determined that he had a "significant prior criminal history," negating the first enumerated mitigating circumstance (F.S. 921.141 (6)(a)). Although the Court found that Mr. Quince was not under the influence of an extreme mental or emotional disturbance (F.S. 921.141(6)(b)), it did credit Mr. Quince with being substantially impaired (F.S. 921.141 (6)(f)). The Court further determined that Mr. Quince's age was not a mitigating circumstance (F.S. 921.141(6)(g)) and that the remaining statutory factors were inapplicable. (R.App. Vol. I at 19-20). The Court concluded that the aggravating circumstances outweighed the mitigating and sentenced Mr. Quince to death. (R.App. Vol. I at 20).

After appeal, a Motion for Post-Conviction Relief was filed in the Circuit Court of the Seventh Judicial Circuit In And For Volusia County, Florida on behalf of Mr. Quince on July 5, 1983, pursuant to Rule 3.850 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. (PCR. 602-11). Affidavits of Mr. Quince's mother and sister were later submitted in support of the motion (PCR. 613-19), and a Supplement to Motion for Post Conviction Relief was submitted on February 8, 1984. (PCR. 621-44). At Mr. Quince's

request (PCR. 645-49, 655-62), the Court stayed his execution set for February 20, 1984 (PCR. 669) and scheduled an evidentiary hearing on the post conviction motion for March 19, 1984. (PCR. 672-74). Mr. Quince's motion for the appointment of experts to present evidence to prove the allegations of his motion for post conviction relief (PCR. 663-66, 675-86) was opposed by the State (PCR. 687-94) and denied by the Circuit Court. (PCR. 695).

Due to the serious illness of defense counsel's mother, a continuance of the post conviction hearing date from March 19 to April 23, 1984 was sought (PCR. 700) and approved by the Circuit Court. (PCR. 701). Thereafter, defense counsel's mother died, and an additional three week continuance was requested. (PCR. 703-05). The Court denied this motion. (PCR. 706).

The post conviction hearing began on April 24 and ended on April 27, 1984. At the outset of the hearing, and once more midway through the proceeding, counsel for Mr. Quince renewed the motions for a continuance and the appointment of expert witnesses which the State opposed and the court again denied. (PCR. 4-7, 364)

Over the course of the hearing, the Court heard testimony from sixteen witnesses including several members of Mr. Quince's

family and friends who attested to his character and the absence of any communication from Mr. Pearl during the prosecution of Mr. Quince (PCR. 29-47, 49-60, 60-82, 82-91, 108-16, 128-35, 140-57, 158-65, 166-77) and Dr. Mootry, a social worker who provided a social history of Mr. Quince. (PCR. 178-217). In addition, Mr. Quince testified, inter alia, about his upbringing, his juvenile record, his drug and alcohol usage, the burglary and felony murder of Ms. Bowdoin, his contact with Mr. Pearl, and his understanding of capital proceedings. (PCR. 228-98). William McLivirty, who prepared the presentence investigation report on Mr. Quince, and Mr. Pearl testified on behalf of the State. (PCR. 366-96, 404-582).

On April 30, 1984, the Circuit Court issued an order denying Mr. Quince's motion for post conviction relief. (PCR. 707-08). Mr. Quince filed a timely notice of appeal (PCR. 709), and this appeal ensued.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Mr. Quince was not given a meaningful opportunity to review the presentence investigation report upon which the Circuit Court relied in imposing the death penalty. Because the report contained numerous material inaccuracies, Mr. Quince is entitled to

a new sentencing hearing at which he will have a chance to rebut these items. Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349 (1977); Raulerson v. Wainwright, 508 F.Supp. 381 (MD. Fla. 1980).

In evaluating the sentence to be imposed, the Circuit Court determined that Mr. Quince's juvenile records negated the statutory mitigating circumstance regarding the absence of any significant prior criminal activity. Because there has been no showing that Mr. Quince knowingly and voluntarily waived his right to counsel in those proceedings, the uncounseled juvenile adjudications were constitutionally infirm, In re Gault, 387 U.S. 1 (1967), and should not have been used against him in any way. United States v. Tucker, 404 U.S. 443 (1972). Consequently, this case must be remanded for a new sentencing hearing.

During its case-in-chief at the sentencing hearing, the State introduced testimonial and documentary evidence stemming from three psychiatric examinations of Mr. Quince conducted nearly five months before the entry of his guilty plea. Prior to the examinations, however, Mr. Quince was not advised of his privilege against self-incrimination, and neither he nor his counsel was aware that information gleaned from the examinations could be introduced by the State at sentencing. Accordingly, the State's use of this psychiatric evidence to prospectively rebut certain mitigating factors contravened Mr. Quince's Fifth, Sixth,

and Fourteenth Amendment rights, and he is entitled to a new sentencing hearing at which this evidence will be included. Estelle v. Smith, 451 U.S. 454 (1981).

During his representation of Mr. Quince, defense counsel failed to confer sufficiently with his client, undertook only a superficial investigation of defenses and mitigation, provided advice based on inadequate information and research, had a client he believed was incompetent to plead guilty, failed to interpose appropriate objections to evidence submitted at sentencing, and performed ineptly throughout the sentencing hearing. The conduct of Mr. Quince's attorney fell below constitutional standards and substantially prejudiced the defense. Because Mr. Quince was denied the effective assistance of counsel, his conviction and sentence must be vacated and the case remanded for further proceedings. Strickland v. Washington, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (1984).

evidence below establishes that the Florida Death Penalty Statute administered is in an arbitrary and discriminatory fashion. This claim has been recognized to be legally sufficient to warrant relief. Spencer v. Zant, 715 F.2d 1562 (11th Cir.), reh'g en banc granted, 715 F.2d 1583 (1983). But see Adams v. Wainwright, 734 F.2d 511 (11th Cir. 1984).

An indigent capital defendant litigating the propriety and constitutionality of his death sentence is entitled to funds to retain experts and other necessary services. See generally Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S. 817 (1977); Douglas v. California, 372 U.S. 353 (1963). The trial court's failure to provide Mr. Quince such funds, coupled with its denial of his request for a short continuance of the post conviction hearing, due to the death of his counsel's mother, resulted in a hearing which was neither full nor fair.

ARGUMENT

I. MR. QUINCE WAS DEPRIVED OF HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO KNOW AND TO CONTEST NUMEROUS INACCURATE STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THE PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT

Because Mr. Quince was never provided a copy of nor allowed to read the presentence investigation (P.S.I.) report prepared in anticipation of his sentencing hearing, he had no meaningful opportunity to counter several material errors in the report which reflected adversely on his character. Therefore, his sentence of death must be vacated and this case returned to the Circuit Court for a new sentencing hearing.

In <u>Gardner v. Florida</u>, 430 U.S. 349 (1977), the United States Supreme Court determined that the defendant there had been:

denied due process of law when the death sentence was imposed, at least in part, on the basis of information which he had no opportunity to deny or explain.

430 U.S. at 362. Accordingly, the Supreme Court vacated Mr. Gardner's death sentence and remanded the case to this Court for further proceedings. Id.

Three years later, the Gardner decision was invoked to grant federal habeas corpus relief to a Florida prisoner who contended that the trial court which sentenced him to death had relied in part on information contained in a presentence investigation report which had been shown to the petitioner's attorney, but not to the petitioner prior to the sentencing. Raulerson v. Wainwright, 508 F.Supp. 381 (M.D. Fla. 1980). The Court there reasoned that knowledge of errors or omissions in a P.S.I. is peculiarly within the defendant who has "'a constitutional right to know and to test the accuracy of any statement in the presentence report upon which the sentencing judge relied.'" 508 F.Supp. at 384 (citing United States v. Woody, 567 F.2d 1353, 1361, cert. denied, 436 U.S. 908 (1978)). The district court then concluded:

That right is the right of Petitioner as well as his counsel. Petitioner must be given the opportunity to rebut and deny any portion of the report and such opportunity clearly requires personal knowledge of the information to be rebutted.

508 F.Supp. at 384.

Here, there is no dispute that the sentencing Court did rely on the presentence investigation report. (STR. 100; R.App. Vol. I at 18). Nor is there any doubt that Mr. Pearl did not review the entire report with his client: he did not furnish a copy to his client, he did not read the report to Mr. Quince, nor did he review the report in any great detail with his client. (PCR. 496-97, 553). Rather, Mr. Pearl reviewed only what he saw as the "high points" and then he only discussed them briefly with his client. (PCR. 553). Mr. Quince confirmed that he never saw the report. (PCR. 284-85). Such a procedure hardly comports with the requirements of Gardner and Raulerson.

The lack of opportunity to examine the P.S.I. report unquestionably was harmful because Mr. Quince does challenge the correctness of several factual statements in the P.S.I. report. More specifically, he disputes, <u>inter alia</u>, Mr. McLiverty's description of his interests and hobbies (PCR. 239-41, 243-44) as well as the characterization of his juvenile record (PCR. 245-

49),³ an incident at the Deland County Jail (PCR. 249-50), his employment history (PCR. 256-60), and his remorse over the crimes. (PCR. 273-74, 321). Mr. Quince also denies that he ever set fires as a child, was cruel to animals, or forced himself sexually on one of his girlfriends. (PCR. 251).

In view of the numerous negative statements in the P.S.I. which Mr. Quince contests and which he never had the opportunity to review, it is evident that he was denied the chance to fully examine and rebut its contents. Since the Circuit Court considered the P.S.I. report in deciding to impose the death penalty, Mr. Quince was denied his right to due process and the sentence must be vacated.

II. THE USE OF INVALID JUVENILE ADJUDICATIONS TO DETERMINE MR. QUINCE'S SENTENCE OF OF DEATH WAS CONSTITUTIONAL ERROR

In determining Mr. Quince's sentence, Judge Foxman denied him the benefit of the statutory mitigating circumstance that he had not engaged in any significant prior criminal activity. The

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