IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

		SID J. WHITE
KENNETH DARCELL QUINCE,)	
Petitioner)	NOV 21 1984
vs.) CASE NO. 65,40	CLERK, SUPREME COURT, Chief Deputy Ciph
STATE OF FLORIDA,	\(\)	Cilier Deputy Clark
Respondent.) }	
)	

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

W. BRIAN BAYLY ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 125 N. Ridgewood Avenue Fourth Floor Daytona Beach, Florida 32014 (904) 252-2005 COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

TOPICAL

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

ARGUMENT

Petitioner submits under <u>Gardner v. Florida</u>, 97 S.Ct. 1197, 430 U.S. 349, 51 L.Ed.2d 393 (1977), he was deprived of his constitutional right to be aware of the pre-sentence report to his detriment. Respondent would initially suggest two facts; (1). William McLiverty testified that no part of this pre-sentence investigation was confidential (PCR 373). (2). This report was disclosed to Petitioner's counsel and his attorney reviewed this report with Petitioner (PCR 553). Petitioner has not specifically disclosed what parts of this pre-sentence investigation were not shown to him. Rather Petitioner denied being shown the report (PCR 285, 553).

In <u>Gardner</u> the trial court specifically relied on pre-sentence information which was not disclosed to Gardner nor his counsel. The Supreme Court explained that there was no opportunity for Gardner's counsel to challenge the accuracy or materiality of this information. <u>Id</u> at 1204. The Supreme Court also pointed out that there was no waiver nor any tactical decision by Gardner's attorney regarding this information. <u>Id</u>. at 1206. Likewise, Petitioner's reliance on <u>Raulerson v. Wainwright</u>, 508 F. Supp. 381 (Fla. M.D. 1980) is misplaced bacause the record failed to show in <u>Raulerson</u> that the Petitioner or his counsel received the undisclosed pre-sentence information.

In Raulerson the Court noted that the State did not argue

procedural default pursuant to Wainwright v. Sykes, 433 U.S. 72, 97 S.Ct. 2497, 53 L.Ed.2d 94 (1977). In the case at bar, Respondent does argue that there is procedural default and the issue has not been preserved for review in a post-conviction motion. In Songer v. State, 419 So. 2d 1044, 1047 (Fla. 1982) it was held that whether a defendant saw his presentence investigation is a question that is directly appealable. Respondent notes that Petitioner's attorney at the trial and sentencing phase never posted any objection regarding any Gardner violation. Respondent also notes that this issue could have been raised on direct appeal but was not. Consequently it cannot be brought up for the first time on a post-conviction motion. Irby v. State, 454 So.2d 757 (Fla. 1st DCA). But indeed, this could not have been brought up on direct appeal in any event because the attorney at trial for Petitioner had waived such an objection. See, United States v. Leonard, 589 F.2d. 470 (9th Cir. 1977) where defendant's attorney failed to bring up alleged inaccuracies in a pre-sentence investigation at sentencing and the court held that there was a waiver and that no evidentiary hearing would be granted pursuant to Leonard's post-conviction motion.

Although Respondent perceives no error in this point, if there were any error it certainly would be harmless. Much of the contested information in the pre-sentence report (Petitioner forcing himself on a girlfriend, starting fires, and being cruel to animals) was revealed to Dr. Carrera who examined Petitioner pursuant to defense motion to determine his competency to stand trial and a possible sanity defense. Inasmuch as this report (R.App. 56) discloses such details there could be no possible harm in any potential <u>Gardner</u> violation. Additionally this Court held in the direct appeal of this cause that it did not appear that

the trial court limited his consideration to only statutory mitigating circumstances. Quince v. State, 414 So. 2d 185 (Fla. 1982). The trial court commented after the post-conviction hearing that he did not accord the pre-sentence investigation recommendations much weight (PCR 588). The judge's sentencing order (R.App. 18-28) revealed that he did not find any aggravating circumstances based upon pre-sentence investigation. The trial court may have been aware of such contested information in the pre-sentence investigation but that does not mean that he necessarily considered it a part of the order and sentencing petitioner. See, Adams v. State, 355 So.2d 1205 (Fla. 1978) and Alford v. State, 355 So.2d 108 (Fla. 1977). To the extent that this Court has held that the record does not disclose that the trial court considered only statutory mitigating circumstances, Petitioner cannot be heard now to complain that the deprivation alleged in this point precluded the trial court from considering non-statutory mitigating circumstances. In essence, this 'Gardner' violation would be harmless error if there indeed was a substantive error of this nature and it had been preserved for appellate (and a post-conviction) review.

POINT II

THE STATE WAS ENTITLED TO INTRODUCE PETITIONER'S PRIOR JUVENILE ADJUDICATIONS AT THE SENTENCING HEARING AND ANY ALLEGED ERROR THEREBY IS NOT COGNIZABLE FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF.

ARGUMENT

Petitioner next argues that the consideration of his juvenile record was improper because the juvenile adjudications were "uncounseled" (or there had not been a knowing and voluntary waiver thereof). In Quince v. State, 414 So. 2d at 188, on direct appeal this Court held that the juvenile record could be used to disspell the mitigating circumstance that Quince had not significant prior criminal history. The argument on direct appeal was that the juvenile convictions were too remote and a juvenile record should not be considered. The appeal did not argue that the convictions were uncounseled. Moreover, defense counsel below at trial never objected to the juvenile record on the grounds that the convictions were "uncounseled." (R.App. 7). See, Steinhurst v. State, 412 So. 2d 332 (Fla. 1982) where it was held that an attorney at trial must give the ground for his objection in order to preserve the issue for appellate review.

Dobbert v. State, ___ So.2d ___ (Fla. 1984) [9 FLW 326, August 28, 1984] held that an issue which could have been raised on direct appeal would not be cognizable in a motion pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850. Further the fact that a defendant may raise somewhat different facts to support his legal claim does not compel a different result. Petitioner is using somewhat different facts to relitigate the issue that his juvenile record should not be admissible. This is clearly procedurally improper under Dobbert. In Adams v. State, 449 So.2d 819, 822 (Fla. 1984) the

defendant attached the finding of an aggravating circumstance in a death sentence based upon a collateral Tennessee conviction. This Court held that the issue should have been raised on direct appeal and could not be heard on a post-conviction matter.

In any event the record belies the assertion that there was no knowing and voluntary waiver of counsel for these juvenile convictions (R.App. Vo. 2) (App. 1-9). This record reveals that the Petitioner was notified of his rights and acknowledged these rights by his signature. This record also reveals that there were orders by the judge which show that the Petitioner waived his right to an attorney. These acknowledgments and waiver of rights were not mere court minutes which were condemned in C.G.H. v. State, 404 So.2d 400 (Fla. 5th DCA 1981). During the hearing pursuant to the post-conviction motion Petitioner acknowledged his signature on the notification of rights form (PCR 299-306).

In Adams, supra this Court expressed doubts that it would seek to declare the out-of-state conviction unconstitutional. In any event this issue certainly cannot be raised for the first time on a motion pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850.

Respondent has made an appendix from the record of the direct appeal in order to avoid delay because the juvenile record is not numbered.

POINT III

THE STATE'S INTRODUCTION OF PSYCHIATRIC EVIDENCE AT MR QUINCE'S CAPITAL SENTENCING DID NOT VIOLATE HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS.

ARGUMENT

Petitioner asserts that under Battie v. Estelle 655 F.2d 692 (5th Cir. 1981)⁴ and Estelle v.Smith, 451 U.S. 454 101 S.Ct. 1866, 68 L.Ed.2d 359 (1980) that Petitioner should have been given Miranda warnings and waived his Fifth Amendment right prior to conducting an interview with Dr. Barnard, the psychiatrist who testified on behalf of the State at the sentencing hearing. The United States Supreme Court in Estelle v. Smith, specifically acknowledged that introduction by the defense of psychiatric testimony constituted a waiver of that defendant's Fifth Amendment privilege just as when a defendant elects to testify in his own behalf he waives that privilege. See, United States v. Cohen, 530 F.2d 43 (5th Cir. 1976). A defendant can invoke this protection only when he does not introduce mental health expert testimony. It is irrefutable that Petitioner's counsel at trial initiated the motions to have Petitioner examined for competency and a possible insanity defense. More importantly, Mr. Quince had Dr. Ann McMillen testify on his behalf regarding his mental status as well as Dr. Fernando Stern (S.T.R. 132-146, 150-165). At the post-conviction hearing Mr. Pearl testified that to the extent that the reports referred to Petitioner's drug and alcohol abuse, these findings would be helpful to his defense of impairment at the time

This Court announced in <u>Hargrave v. State</u>, 427 So.2d 713,715, footnote 8 (Fla. 1983) that this case was not persuasive nor was it of any precedential value

of the crime for sentencing purposes (PCR 440). To that extent Dr. Barnard's report would indeed be helpful to Petitioner's case (R.App. 54). In Estelle v. Smith, the doctor's testimony was used specifically to establish an aggravating factor and the defense was totally suprised. In the case at bar the defense was not suprised and some of the doctor's testimony could indeed be used to augment the impairment defense at the sentencing phase. Dr. Barnard's testimony was more in the way of rebuttal of Petitioner's mental health experts'. In any event this issue has already been addressed and decided against Petitioner in Hargrave, supra where this Court held that when a defendant initiated a psychiatric exam and introduced such testimony, the defendant waived any rights under Estelle v. Smith, supra.

POINT IV

PETITIONER'S COUNSEL WAS NOT INEFFECTIVE AND AS SUCH PETITIONER'S SIXTH AND FOUR-TEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION WERE NOT VIOLATED.

ARGUMENT

Any issue revolving around a trial attorney's performance must commence with the standards utilized to judge that performance in post-conviction proceedings. In <u>Ford v. State</u>, 407 So. 2d 907, 909 (Fla. 1981) the four standards were reiterated as follows:

- (1) The specific act or omission must be alleged in the pleading.
- (2) It is the Petitioner's burden to show that there was a substantial and serious deficiency on the part of his attorney below.
- (3) Petitioner must show that but for the ineffective assistance there was a likelihood that the conduct affected the outcome of the court proceedings.
- (4) The State still can rebutt any ineffective assistance of counsel showing based on the latter three conditions if there was no prejudice in fact even if this constitutional violation was involved.

Additionally in <u>Downs v. State</u>, 453 So.2d 1102 (Fla. 1984) this Court held that the alleged deficiency must, under the circumstances, be substantial so as to probably affect the outcome of the proceedings. An attorney's choice will be given great deference. It was also held in <u>Downs</u> that this type of proceeding would not be appropriate in every case but relief would be granted only in extraordinary circumstances. In <u>Meeks v. State</u>, 382 So.2d 673,675 (Fla. 1980) this Court held that a defendant was not entitled to errorless counsel nor will a counsel's performance be based on a standard of hindsight. In Adams v. Wainwright, 709 So.2d 1443 (11th DCA

1983), it was held that the conduct in order to afford a Petitioner relief on this type of claim must be so patently unreasonable that no competent attorney would have chosen the course of conduct.⁵

Initially Petitioner complains that his attorney contacted him only on four or five occasions and did not advise him thoroughly about his options and thus restricted Petitioner's participation in the In Walker v. Wainwright, 350 F. Supp. 916 (D.C. Fla. 1972), the Petitioner complained that his counsel was ineffective because he only talked to him right before the trial and ignored Petitioner's alibi defense. The district court denied relief because Walker did not demonstrate that his counsel was ineffective because his counsel relied upon a confession. Respondent submits that this allegation does not demonstrate a substantial and serious deficiency by the attorney below in and of itself. As such, Petitioner has not and cannot demonstrate tht there would be a likelihood that the omission affected the outcome of the court proceedings. Additionally this is not a specific omission. Petitioner has not alleged, at this juncture, any specific omissions (e.g., such as failing to talk to the Petitioner about the circumstances of his confession PCR 423).

Next, Petitioner argues that there was little independent investigation. Even assuming this allegation to be correct, the same

In Mikenas v. State, Som2d (Fla. 1984) [9 FLW 473, November 1, 1984] this Court held that the standard announced in Strickland v. Washington, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (1984) (wherein counsel's performance pursuant to a guilty plea and a death penalty imposition was held not to be ineffective) had a standard which did not differ significantly with the precepts announced in Knight v. State, 394 So.2d 997 (Fla. 1981).

objections interposed above to the first alleged error would likewise be applicable to this objection. 6 The record belies this contention in any event. Mr. Pearl took the depositions of the key witnesses in the case, including Detective Larry Lewis who was the lead Detective, obtained both confessions, and did fingerprint analysis (PCR 435-436). Likewise Mr. Pearl took the deposition of the pathologist, Dr. Arthur Botting, as well as talked to another fingerprint expert in relation to this case, Aida Murphy. Additionally Mr. Pearl secured the services of Dr. Ann McMillen, a psychologist, to aid his client for the sentence (R.App. 57). Mr. Pearl also talked to the serologist, Mr. Baer, at the Sanford Crime Lab (PCR 447). Mr. Pearl explained at the hearing that there were tactical reasons why he did not feel it necessary to challenge the serologists. (PCR 448). Indeed, in view of the overwhelming evidence against Appellant (see the deposition of Detective Larry Lewis) (PCR 729-730) which included fingerprint evidence inside and outside a window ledge, two confessions obtained after Miranda rights were administered to the Petitioner, and the fact that property taken from the victim was traced and found based upon Petitioner's confessions and identification by relatives, there would appear to be no tactical advantage gained by formally deposing the serologist or obtaining an independant expert.

In <u>United States v. Fratus</u>, 530 F.2d 644 (5th Cir. 1976) it was held that defense counsel was not incompetent by not seeking to appoint an additional psychiatrist for his client's insanity defense. The court appointed psychiatrist were of the opinion that the defendant was legally insane. In the case at bar there is no reason to challenge

 $^{^{6}}$ Please refer to Point VI of this brief, infra.

the experts testimony and Petitioner has alleged no reason to do so.

In Reynolds v. Mabry, 574 F.2d 978 (8th Cir. 1978) the review court held in a proceeding of this nature, that a choice to rely on an insanity defense excuses a failure to investigate defenses relating to the circumstances of the arrest. Again in State v. Laley, 517 F.2d 1190 (9th Ct. of Appeal 1975) the review court held that a strategic choice not to pursue certain lines of investigation excused defense counsel from presenting another forceful defense. Petitioner has not alleged any independant investigation which Mr. Pearl could have done which would have been fruitful or seriously affected the outcome of the proceedings. If an attorney (as in Mabry and Laley) is excused from examining other defenses when he relies on one defense, certainly Mr. Pearl should not be deemed incompetent for not pursuing futile defenses. See, Owens v. Wainwright, 698 F.2d 1111 (11th Cir. C.A. 1983) where an alleged failure by counsel to investigate a possible insanity defense and not file a motion to suppress a confession were held not ineffective because there was a signed confession and it was not necessary for the counsel to present a defense not likely to succeed.

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